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RFP NO. 14-2885P
TO BE OPENED: AUGUST 22, 2014
TITLE: MONTANA LOTTERY OPERATING SYSTEM AND RELATED SERVICES
ADDENDUM NO. 1
To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No 1.
Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,

Penny Moon
Senior Contracts Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section

Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP# 14-2885P

	1. 
	5
	Schedule of Events
	Q.     Will the Lottery please amend the RFP to allow vendors the opportunity to ask questions anytime during the process up to a certain number of days prior to the due date of the response (10 for example.)  As we and I suspect all vendors, get deeper into our response, invariably questions arise that we had not previously considered.  Answers to these types of questions help vendors prepare a more solid bid.  Missouri provided for this in their recent RFP and it was quite useful.
A.     The Lottery will allow a second round of questions from the offerors.  
Offerors having additional questions must address these issues via e-mail or in writing to the procurement officer listed above on or before July 9, 2014.  Offerors are to submit questions using the Vendor RFP Question and Answer Form available on the OneStop Vendor Information website at: http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/GSDDocuments.aspx or by calling (406) 444-2575. Clear reference to the section, page, and item in question must be included in the form. Questions received after the deadline may not be considered.

The State will provide a written response by July 21, 2014 to all questions received by July 9, 2014. The State's response will be by written addendum and will be posted on the State's website with the RFP at http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/SolicitationDefault.aspx by the close of business on the date listed. Any other form of interpretation, correction, or change to this RFP will not be binding upon the State. 

	2. 
	6
	1.2 Contract Period
	Q.     Under Section 18-4-13 of the MCA, a contract awarded by the Lottery cannot be longer than 10 years.

Will the Lottery please confirm that the potential 10 years available under the Operations Contract (7-year initial term and 3 years of renewal) is not impacted by the 16-month Transition Agreement? 

That is, the 16-month period of the Transition Agreement will not decrease the 3 years of the potential renewal period under the Operations Contract?

A.     The Lottery will execute a separate contract for transition and implementation, which is anticipated to be approximately 16 months long.

The Operations Contract will have the potential to run a full 10 years.

	3. 
	6
	1.4.2 Form of Questions

1.4.3 State’s Response
	Q.     Sections 1.4.2 and 1.4.3 permit offerors to ask clarification questions on or before June 13, 2014, with the State’s response to such questions being issued by June 27, 2014.

Will the Lottery please consider adding a second round of questions to be submitted in mid-July (e.g., July 11, 2014), with responses back from the State at the end of July (e.g., July 25, 2014)?

As this potential offeror alone has nearly 100 questions, a second round of questions and answers will allow potential offerors to clarify any issues that may not have been fully resolved via the State’s responses to the first round of questions, and will allow offerors to submit the most compelling offers to the State.

A.      Please see response to question #1.

	4. 
	7
	1.6 Submitting a Proposal
	Q.     Will the Lottery please allow consecutive page numbering within each section, starting each section with a footer that includes the Section # - Page 1? For example: 3.2.1 – 1 through 3.2.1 – X, then 3.2.2–1, etc.?

A.     This numbering scheme is acceptable to the State.

	5. 
	8

9
	1.6.4 Copies Required and Deadline for Receipt of Proposals

2.3.2 Procurement Officer Review of Proposals
	Q.     Sections 1.6.4 and 2.3.2 provide that in the event confidential materials are included in an offeror’s proposal, such confidential materials must be “separated” from the proposal and included on a USB flash drive. As the confidential materials may not be full pages or sections, and instead may be discrete paragraphs and/or diagrams, etc., it is impractical to separate out these materials, as the flow of the proposal (and the evaluators’ ability to read the proposal section seamlessly) will be unnecessarily hampered and made less effective. 

As an alternative, this potential offeror respectfully recommends that instead of requiring that the confidential information be “separated” from the proposal, that such offeror submit a “redacted” copy of such offeror’s proposal, which redacts all confidential information from the proposal. This “redacted” copy would be provided by the offeror on a USB flash drive and could then be made available for public inspection under the State’s Open Records Act, Montana Code Section 2-6-101 et seq. Will the Lottery please revise Sections 1.6.4 and 2.3.2 to conform to the above recommendation of allowing the “redacted” copy instead of separating out the confidential information?

A.     Yes, the State will accept this alternative; however, one redacted paper copy and one redacted electronic copy will need to be submitted to fulfill the public access requirements. 

	6. 
	8
	1.7.2 Ownership of Timely Submitted Materials
	Q.     Section 1.7.2 provides that the State (Montana Lottery) shall “own” all materials submitted in response to the RFP.

As this statement could mistakenly be interpreted to mean that the State (Lottery) takes ownership of an offeror’s trade secrets contained in a proposal, will the Lottery please confirm that the State (Lottery)’s rights to the submitted materials will be subject to an offeror’s rights to preserve their trade secrets, and that, provided an offeror appropriately identifies its trade secret information, the State (Lottery) will not use and/or have any rights in such materials that would compromise an offeror’s rights to such trade secrets?

A.     This statement does not mean the Lottery will own the offeror’s trade secrets incorporated in the submitted materials.  The State will retain and own the materials submitted, subject to offeror’s ownership of its trade secrets.

	7. 
	12
	3.2.1 System Requirements
	Q.     Section 3.2.1 of the RFP provides that the system must be “fully operational 24 hours a day.”

As some downtime may be necessary each day for system updates, services, etc., will the Lottery please revise this requirement so that the system is “operational near 24 hours a day (e.g. 23.5 hours)”?

A.     We understand that some system updates will require downtime; however, we expect the system to be fully functional 24/7 unless agreed upon downtime is necessary.

	8. 
	12
	3.2.1 System Requirements
	Q.     Section 3.2.1 provides that the contractor will be responsible for the costs in connection with MUSL rules or other changes. Future changes to MUSL rules or other future changes MUSL or the Lottery may require are unknown; as such, will the Lottery please revise this requirement to permit reasonable compensation to the Contractor for costs and modifications relating to such changes?

A.     Our expectation is that our vendor partner fully participates in our business planning and supports our decisions to implement new games. The future is unknown; however, we believe game changes and other system changes will enhance revenues for the State of Montana and for our vendor.

	9. 
	12
	3.2.1 System Requirements
	Q.     Section 3.2.1 requires that “at the fifth year of the contract the solution be upgraded to the latest version of backend software/system hardware available.”

This requirement is extremely troublesome, as requiring a solution “upgrade” at year five (5), as is required in Section 3.2.1, is not standard in the lottery industry, nor is it even necessary given the useful life of the systems in the requested solution. Further, with a seven (7) year initial term, a contractor would only have two (2) years to recoup its capital investment in such upgraded solution (if new and unused – please see below question) should the extensions not be granted (which cannot be assumed). For the foregoing reasons, an offeror will be required to heavily burden their pricing to account for this solution upgrade, which is not beneficial to the State of Montana or the Lottery’s good causes. 

As such, this potential vendor respectfully requests that the Lottery delete in its entirety the requirement that the solution be upgraded in the fifth year of the contract?

Further, the above issue is compounded by the lack of a requirement in the RFP (or the Montana Code, to our knowledge) that the system and equipment to be provided under the RFP be “new and unused”.  

Will the Lottery please confirm that, for the purpose of a level playing field for all offerors, all elements of an offeror’s proposed “system” (including terminals, communications network, and central system) must be new and unused?

Will the Lottery further confirm that, for the purpose of ensuring a level playing field for all offerors, no element of the existing technology or network will be in existence post the conversion end date?

Will the Lottery further confirm that, for the purpose of ensuring a level playing field for all bidders, any current assets will be required to be replaced with new ones as a part of this contract (by the end of conversion) or they will be made available to all offerors?

Lastly, if there are assets that can be used by the Lottery and/or the incoming vendor, will the Lottery please provide information relating to the type and number of those assets?

A.     The Lottery will strike “/system hardware” from the above mentioned sentence. The sentence is revised to read (deleted items interlined): “The Lottery requires at the fifth year of the contract the solution be upgraded to the latest version of backend software/system hardware available.”
Yes, the Lottery agrees that the offeror’s proposed system hardware and communications equipment must be new and unused.

Yes, the Lottery agrees that the offeror’s proposed solution must not include any element of the existing technology or network.
There are no current assets that can be used in any offerors’ proposed solution.

	10. 
	12
	3.2.1
	Q.     System Requirements, Third paragraph:

“The contractor will be responsible for all costs and modifications of the solution due to changes to Multi-State Lottery Association (MUSL) rules or any other changes MUSL or the Lottery may require.  The Lottery requires at the fifth year of the contract the solution be upgraded to the latest version of backend software/system hardware available.  Contractor will provide yearly certification, on the contract anniversary date, of compliance with this requirement to the Lottery Director for Security.”

Is this requirement referring to RNG/ADM certification?
A.    
No, the last sentence of the above mentioned paragraph should be removed from this paragraph and inserted before the last sentence of the prior paragraph. These two paragraphs are revised to read (deleted items interlined, added items bold and underlined):  

“All gaming transaction systems offered must meet or exceed the National Institute of Standards and Technology’s (NIST) Common Criteria compliance (see www.nist.gov). ISO-9001 and World Lottery Association Security Control Standards certification of the proposed solution is desirable. If the proposed solution meets ISO-9001 series standards and is so certified, offerors must indicate which category and provide a copy of the certification with their response. Contractor shall provide yearly certification, on the contract anniversary date, of compliance with this requirement to the Lottery Director for Security. It is desirable that the contractor’s Project Manager be certified by the Project Management Institute.

The contractor is responsible for all costs and modifications of the solution due to changes to Multi-State Lottery Association (MUSL) rules or any other changes MUSL or the Lottery may require. The Lottery requires at the fifth year of the contract the solution be upgraded to the latest version of backend software/system hardware available. Contractor will provide yearly certification, on the contract anniversary date, of compliance with this requirement to the Lottery Director for Security.”

	11. 
	13
	3.2.1.1
	Q.     In regards to the requirement that the contractor must employ a production system providing full redundancy at all levels and no common point of failure while ensuring 99.7% uptime throughout the life of the contract, will the Lottery please clarify if they are expecting that the production system must be a duplexed system?
A.     If vendor proposes a traditional system design, the primary system facility must employ minimally a duplexed design where the system provides redundancy at all levels and no common point of failure.

	12. 
	13
	3.2.1.2
	Q.     Will the Lottery please clarify if they are expecting that the backup system must also be a duplexed system?
A.     If vendor proposes a traditional system design, the backup system facility must employ a design capable of addressing any physical or logical duplicity deficiencies as defined in Section 3.2.1.2 (last paragraph).

	13. 
	13
	3.2.1.2.c
	Q.     Will the Lottery please clarify if they are expecting that the backup copies of all software and data associated with operation of the Lottery be stored in a software escrow provided by an independent third party?
A.     The Lottery does not expect copies of software and data to be stored by an independent third party, rather just to be stored in a facility separate from the Lottery’s Production system equipment.

	14. 
	14
	3.2.1.3
	Q.     In regards to the requirement, the test system must be configured as an exact duplication of the Production system, if the Production system must be a duplex system, will the Lottery please clarify whether or not the test system must also be a fully duplexed system?
A.     The system under test must be the same as or functionally identical to, the physical and software gaming system configuration, as per MUSL minimum standards.

	15. 
	14
	3.2.1.5 Internal Control System (ICS)
	Q.     Section 3.2.1.5 provides that the contractor will be responsible for the costs in connection with MUSL rules that require changes to the ICS, and for additional ICS to meet updated MUSL minimum standards. Future changes to MUSL requirements relating to ICS systems are unknown; as such,, will the Lottery please revise this requirement to permit reasonable compensation to the Contractor for costs and modifications relating to such changes?

A.     Please see response to question #8.

	16. 
	15
	3.2.1.10 Production System Quantitative Performance Criteria
	Q.     Section 3.2.1.10 requires that the “system must initially support a network of at least 1,300 terminals with unlimited expansion capability (emphasis added).” While it is industry standard to require reasonable system expansion capability, requiring unlimited expansion is not standard and, more important, is not commercially feasible. 

As such, will the Lottery please revise the requirement under Section 3.2.1.10 and allow for expansion of the system to a reasonable amount?
A.     The Lottery agrees.  The sentence is revised to read (deleted items interlined and added items underlined and bold): “The system must initially support a network of at least 1,300 terminals with unlimited the expansion capability to support double the initial terminal population.”  

	17. 
	16
	3.2.2 Communications Network
	Q.     With respect to the Communications Network described in Section 3.2.2, will the Lottery please describe your current communications network? Will the Lottery please also provide uptime statistics?

A.     All terminals are connected to central system via Satellite and T1 backhaul.  Lottery office workstations are connected to Lottery Operating System via T1 and cloud.  Lottery Sales Representatives access Back Office System via VPN internet connections.  Uptime statistics cannot be provided.

	18. 
	17
	3.2.2.1 Detailed Network Plan
	Q.     Will the Lottery please provide the number of current multiple terminal locations in Montana?

A.     As of Friday, June 20, 2014, the Lottery has 341 retailer locations with multiple terminals.

	19. 
	17
	3.2.2.2 Terminal Network Design Requirements
	Q.     Section 3.2.2.2 requires offerors to “provide examples of current contracts” to evidence accomplishing those measures listed in Section 3.2.2.2.

Will the Lottery please confirm that by providing examples of current contracts that Lottery is intending for the offers to describe those contracts where the measures are accomplished and not attach copies of such contracts?

A.     Yes, the Lottery is intending for the offeror to describe those contracts, and not attach copies of such contracts.  This sentence is revised to read: “Provide examples descriptions of current contracts where each of the above measures is currently accomplished.”

	20. 
	17
	3.2.2.3 Trouble Escalation
	Q.     Section 3.2.2.3 defines “Major trouble” (requiring response within 2 hours of report) as the “loss of communication with multiple terminals or problems with stems hardware or software (emphasis added).”

Loss of communication with multiple terminals (which for example, could be just two (2) terminals) for unrelated issues should not be deemed to be a major issue. Further, the term “problems” is not defined and is overly inclusive, and such “problems” may not result in “major trouble”. 

As such, will the Lottery please revise Section 3.2.2.3 to provide that the term “major trouble” is defined as follows (new language added in bold): 

“loss of communication with multiple terminals related to the same issue (or with respect to similar issues) or significant problems with systems hardware or software that resulted in (or could reasonably result in) degraded performance of the system”?

A.      Yes, the Lottery agrees to the revision.

	21. 
	23
	3.4.1 Winner Claims Management
	Q.     Will the Lottery please provide some additional background information on your claim center(s)? 

We would be interested in knowing how many claim centers are in operation today. Will the Lottery please provide the number of teller windows per claim center, and the number of check writers per claim center?

A.     Currently, there is only one claim center at the Lottery office with one window, manned by one teller with two backup personnel if needed.  Note: Walk-in payments are a small part of the Lottery’s claim function. Also note: ‘Remote locations as determined by Lottery’ refers to desired ability to expand into other locations in the future.

	22. 
	26
	3.7.8.c
	Q.     In regards to the requirement, the contractor’s test system must include two game management and reporting systems and equipment, the same as, or functionally identical to the Lottery’s physical and software computer systems and equipment, which accomplish all system interfaces such as, but not limited to; instant ticket functionality, retailer maintenance, draw processing, accounting functionality, prize payments including claims management, and all available reporting in the test environment, will the Lottery please clarify what they mean by “must include two game management and reporting systems”?
A.     Minimally two workstations (and associated peripheral equipment) in test environment where Lottery testers can perform above mentioned back office functions simulating Production activity.

	23. 
	27
	3.7.9 Test Equipment Requirements
	Q.     Will the Lottery please reconsider the requirement to print tickets and reports in different fonts during acceptance testing? It is our belief that MUSL does not require this.

A.     Please reference MUSL Rule 2, section 9.6 Terminal Access.

	24. 
	29
	3.8.5 End of Contract Conversion Cooperation
	Q.     In connection with the requirement under Section 3.8.5 that the contractor transfer the communications links and telephone lines at no additional cost, seeing that the contractor may have prepaid for such services and/or transfer to the Lottery may result in some additional costs, will the Lottery please delete the statement “at no additional cost to the Lottery” and provide instead, that “the contractor will be provided reimbursement of any verifiable and reasonable costs in connection with such transfer of rights.”?

A.     The Lottery agrees to adjust this language as requested. The last sentence of Section 3.8.5 is revised to read: “If conventional telephone lines are used as the means of communications, the contractor shall assign these links to the Lottery at no additional cost to the Lottery.  The contractor will be provided reimbursement of any verifiable and reasonable costs in connection with such transfer of rights.”

	25. 
	29
	3.9.1
	Q.     What quantity of each size advertising display between 17” and 32” does the lottery envision deploying to retailers?
A.     One advertising display unit per retail location.

	26. 
	29
	3.9.2
	Q.     You state there are currently 850 lottery retailers, and the terminal count at conversion will be 1,300 terminals.
Q1: Can the lottery please provide details on their vision for the terminal types they expect will make up the 1,300 terminals?

Q2: Does every retailer have a clerk terminal? 
Q3: How many self-service terminals are in locations with a retailer terminal? Is there a retailer terminal at each location a self-service terminal exists? 

Q4: Are there locations with more than 1 self-service terminal? How many?
A.     Q1 - Please refer to the file labeled: ‘Retailer Counts’ posted to the website with this addendum defining estimated terminal counts. Our expectation is that the Offeror will provide its best recommendation. 

Q2 – Yes, our current system requires a clerk terminal with each self serve terminal.  However, if the proposed system does not require a clerk terminal to provide validation and reporting functionality it is not needed in locations with self-serve terminals.

Q3 - As of June 20, 2014, there are 337 locations where a self service terminal is in operation with a retailer terminal. Please refer to the file labeled: ‘Retailer Counts’ posted to the website with this addendum for more information. Currently, yes.


Q4 - No. 

	27. 
	29
	3.9.2 Terminal Counts
	Q.     With respect to the Lottery’s requirement under Section 3.9.2 for up to 1,300 terminals at conversion, in order for a responsible offeror to appropriately cost and price for the mix of terminals to be required, can the Lottery please advise the offerors of the Lottery’s anticipated break-down of the mix of terminals?

For example, out of the existing 850 terminals referenced in the RFP:

· ~32% (275 of 850) are player activated terminals selling terminal issued games;

· ~7% (60 of 850) are player activated terminals that also dispense scratch tickets and are placed in some of the Lottery’s grocery chain stores; and

· ~61% (515 of 850) are clerk-activated terminals.

Will the Lottery confirm that the breakdown for the 1,300 terminals would follow the approximate percentages above? For example, as follows:

· 415 of the 1300 (~32%) would be player activated terminals selling terminal issued games;

· 90 of the 1300 (~7%) would be player activated terminals that also dispense scratch tickets and are placed in some of the Lottery’s grocery chain stores; and

· 795 of the 1300 (~61%) would be clerk-activated terminals.

Further, will the Lottery please advise if the 850 terminals listed in the RFP include the 150 Coronis MP terminals recently leased from its current vendor for the 2015 biennium? 

If not, will the Lottery confirm that these new terminals would be in addition to the 60 player-activated terminals that also dispense scratch tickets and are placed in some of the Lottery’s grocery chain stores, bringing the total to approximately 21% (210 of 1000) of all terminals deployed?
A.     Please see response to question #26.

	28. 
	29
	3.9.2
	Q.     Terminal Counts.  Our expectation by conversion is that there will be approximately 1,000 retailers.  These 1,000 locations will utilize a mix of terminal types.  What is the Lottery’s anticipated number of terminals, by terminal type and trade style, anticipated for the expected 1,000 retailers/locations at conversion?
A.     Please see response to question #26.

	29. 
	29
	3.9.2
	Q.     Terminal Counts.  The Lottery has identified that the terminal count needed will be 1,300 terminals at conversion, which will allow for growth and replacements where needed.  Are the additional 300 terminals requested at conversion to “allow for growth and replacements where needed”?  Can the Lottery please provide, by terminal type and trade style, where it is anticipated this additional 23% growth will occur?  How quickly does the Lottery anticipate placement of these additional terminals?
A.     Please see response to question #26.

	30. 
	29
	3.9.3 Terminal Location
	Q.     Will the Lottery please provide an existing list of retailers, address of retailer, type of terminal(s) at retailer and sales figures for such retailers, on an excel spreadsheet, if possible? 

Will the Lottery please also provide an estimate of retailer churn annually?

A.    
Please refer to the file labeled: ‘Montana Lottery Active Retailer List’ posted to the website with this addendum defining current retailer information as of June 24, 2014.  Please note the Lottery will not provide retailer sales information.

Annual retailer churn for the past two calendar years:
CY

Total Installs

Removals

2013

46

28

2014

31

10



	31. 
	29
	3.9.3
	Q.     Will the Lottery provide a list of all active retailers with SIC code, address, phone numbers and zip code for use in developing a communications solution?
A.     Please see response to question #30.

	32. 
	30
	3.9.6
	Q.     Q1: What is a check stand terminal? Please provide details on functionality and use examples.
Q2: What quantity of remote customer display units does the lottery expect to be deployed?

Q3: What functionality does the lottery desire from the customer display unit? How does it differ from the small transaction display referenced in 3.9.10.f and the customer advertising display referenced in 3.9.10?

Q4: What quantity of remote validation devices does the lottery expect to be deployed?
A.     Q1 - Upon further review the Lottery is removing the check stand terminal solution from Section 3.9.6 as follows: “The contractor must provide a selection of remote customer display units, and remote validation devices, and check stand terminals.”    

Q2 - Each terminal must have the capability to display customer transactional data.


Q3 - The Lottery is accomplishing two primary goals with peripherals. The first is to allow a player/winner to see the value of a ticket when a clerk is validating it at a clerk terminal. Some solutions may have this built into their terminal; if your terminal does not include a built-in, a separate unit will be required for each retail location with a clerk terminal. The second solution we are asking for is advertising messaging, whether dynamic or static, which provides the ability to show current jackpots, winning numbers, winner information, AMBER Alerts, and various other marketing/public information messages. Provide us the best recommendation you have.

Q4 - One at each retail location.  Note: the remote validation device defined in the RFP refers to a Check-a-ticket type unit. Please see response to question #33 for more information. 

	33. 
	30
	3.9.6 Peripherals
	Q.     Will the Lottery please describe its current remote validation device? 

Does this device actually validate tickets or does it check to see if the ticket is a winner or not? 

Will the Lottery provide a photo of this device?

A.     Check-a-ticket units scan both lotto and scratch pdf417 barcodes and check to see if the ticket is a winner or not.  If it is a winner, the unit displays the win amount (or claim message when appropriate) along with associated brief player instructions.

For reference:

 
[image: image1.png]




Remote Verification Unit (Ticket Checker or check-a-ticket unit)

Unit dimensions: 10” H x 5.5 W x 5” Deep (base)

	34. 
	30
	3.9.6 Peripherals
	Q.     Will the Lottery please describe its current customer display unit? 

Will the Lottery also provide a photo?

A.     The current customer display unit (CDU) is attached to our clerk activated terminals.  It displays ticket sales and validation activity being executed on the terminal for the player to view real-time.  While the terminal is not being used by the clerk the CDU scrolls a default marketing message.

For reference:
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Customer Display Unit (CDU)


Unit dimensions: 8.5” H x 8” W x 5” Deep (base)

	35. 
	30
	3.9.6 Peripherals
	Q.     Will the Lottery please describe the functionality of its current check stand device? 

Will the Lottery please provide a photo of this device?

A.     The Lottery does not currently utilize a check stand device.  

	36. 
	30-31
	3.9.10 Customer Advertisement Displays
	Q.     Will the Lottery please describe its current customer advertising display? 

Is this display different from the customer display unit described in 3.9.6? 

Will the Lottery please provide a photo of this display?

A.     The customer advertising display delivers advertising messaging, dynamic and static images, video, current jackpot amounts, winning numbers, winner information, AMBER Alerts, and various other marketing/public information messages.  The Lottery currently has two types of customer advertising display units: a remote and a local (on MP) monitor.


The customer display unit is different from the customer advertising display.  Please see response to question #34 for the description of a customer display unit (CDU).

For reference:
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Player Advertising Display (PAD) unit


Unit dimensions: 12” H x 13.5” W x 7” Deep (base), 14.5” screen
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MP terminal Player Information Display (PID) unit


Unit dimensions: 16.5” screen

	37. 
	31
	3.9.10.b Customer Advertisement Displays
	Q.     Will the Lottery please advise as to the number of displays the Lottery would like the vendor to provide?

A.     One per terminal.

	38. 
	31
	3.9.10.f
	Q.     Q1: Are the small transaction displays part of the base requirement or should it be priced separately? If the transaction display is required, how many?
Q2: Is this “small transaction display” the same as the “remote customer display units” referenced in 3.9.6?
A.     Q1 - Base requirement. // One per clerk activated terminal proposed.


Q2 – No, please see response to question #34 which describes the small transaction display unit for current customer activity.  Please see response to question #36, which describes the remote customer display unit.

	39. 
	31
	3.10.1
	Q.     Please provide information on any retailer recruitment initiatives for the last four years and the Lottery’s success and challenges experienced in recruiting new retailers.
Please provide details relating to any new draw games or draw game changes that the Lottery plans to implement prior to the new contract launch. 

Please provide descriptions and results for draw specific player and retailer promotions that were conducted during the past two years.

Please provide examples of your advertising and POS for draw games.

Please provide copies of any research reports (tracking, player segmentation, focus groups, quantitative) for the last two years.
A.     The 2008 introduction of Fantasy Sports through Montana’s establishments that have a gambling license gave the Lottery an opportunity to conduct a statewide concentrated recruitment effort. 


The process was multi-faceted. An invitation letter was sent to each entity that was a licensed gambling retailer in Montana. Ads were placed in the Tavern Times, the tavern industry’s trade publication. The Lottery issued news stories to media outlets in Montana announcing the joint venture with the Board of Horse Racing and describing how interested businesses could participate in selling the games. 


Additionally, the Lottery’s marketing staff made a concentrated effort to personally contact prospective customers, providing information and answering questions about the benefits for selling Fantasy games and Lottery games. As a result, by the time the first Fantasy game, Football, went on sale, 150 retailers were licensed and had equipment in place to provide the game to its customers. 


It should be noted that with Montana’s small population, our focus is one-to-one when working with retailers and when recruiting new retailers. This is an approach that most Montana businesses find to be the most acceptable, and it works well for the Montana Lottery. The Sales staff spends time to make cold calls on potential retailers, and all in-house staff is skilled at assisting and supporting their efforts. Please refer to the file labeled: ‘Retailer Recruitment’ posted to the website with this addendum also containing some of the materials developed throughout the MSA recruitment process. // Lucky For Life is tentatively scheduled for January 2015. // In the past two years, the Montana Lottery has not conducted any statewide player or retailer specific promotions due to budget constraints. We have conducted small, single-retailer promotions, primarily facilitated by the sales staff, and the results have not been analyzed to any degree.  // Please refer to the files included in the zipped folder: ‘Advertising’ posted to the website with this addendum for examples of our draw game advertising and POS.  Also for current advertising visit our site: http://www.montanalottery.com/limeLight. // Please refer to the file labeled: ‘MT Cash Research Summary Report’ posted to the website with this addendum for Montana Cash research data.  

	40. 
	31
	3.10.1
	Q.     Q1: Does the Lottery anticipate the winning contractor will maintain the current Players Club with its current functionality? Or does the Lottery anticipate the winning vendor will replace the current Montana Players Club with its own version of a Players Club?

Q2: Has the lottery identified any mandatory features and functions for the lottery website, mobile, and Players Club?
Q3: Can the lottery elaborate on what is being requested in the areas of “Social media integration” and “Related Promotions?”
A.     Q1 – Offeror to replace current MPC.


Q2 & Q3 – Please refer to Section 3.18.2.

	41. 
	31-32
	3.11.1.1 Ticket Stock
	Q.     Section 3.11.1.1 states “When the contractor is contacted by the Lottery with an individual ticket number, the contractor must be able to track the ticket number to a single retailer and report the name and location of the retailer to whom it was delivered and when the stock was delivered. The ticket stock printer must provide to the Lottery in a timely manner the following information: the carton stock identification numbers in a recoverable electronic format, such as an Excel spreadsheet.” 

The first statement states the Vendor must be able to track serial numbers and the second statement assumes that the print vendor will provide the information to the Lottery, not the vendor. It is a MUSL violation for the vendor to have any access to the serial number files. The vendor only tracks carton numbers, not serial numbers of rolls. 

Will the Lottery please clarify that it will not require the vendor to violate MUSL regulations?

A.     No deviation from MUSL requirements.

	42. 
	32-33
	3.11.2 Supply Distribution
	Q.     Section 3.11.2 requires delivery of non-emergency ticket stock/playslip supplies within 24 hours.

Given the size of the State of Montana, and the non-emergency nature of such request, will the Lottery please revise the response time for non-emergency requests for ticket stock/playslip supplies to 48 hours?
A.     A 48 hour response time for non-emergency ticket stock/playslip supplies is acceptable.

	43. 
	33
	3.13 Terminal Maintenance
	Q.     Will the Lottery please advise as to the requirements for field service work hours?

And/or will the Lottery provide days/times when transactions trends are at its highest?

A.     No. // Transactions climb dramatically starting from 9AM up to 6PM, then remain high but slowly diminish from 6PM to 8PM.  Highest sales rates occur between 3PM through 6PM, however these trends can change.

	44. 
	34
	3.13.10 Response Time
	Q.     Section 3.13.10 requires response times of: (i) 2 hours in urban areas, and (ii) 24 hours in rural areas. 

Will the Lottery please provide the locations of the “urban” areas in the State of Montana, and confirm that all other areas not included in the urban area will be deemed “rural” areas?

Further, will the Lottery please confirm that any required changes to the time periods set forth in Section 3.13.10 would be subject to mutual agreement with the contractor?

A.     Urban – Great Falls, Billings, Missoula, Kalispell, Helena, Bozeman, and Butte. Also currently Miles City, but at least one of the towns in our current Region 6 (eastern Montana), where the offeror’s technician would reside. // Yes, mutual agreement.

	45. 
	35
	3.14.1 Drug Free Workplace Policy
	Q.     Section 3.14.1 requires biannual drug testing of contractor’s employees that have access to the Lottery’s system. 

This proposed offeror has in place a drug-free workplace program that notifies its employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace and that imposes penalties on employees for drug abuse violations. However, this proposed offer does not, as it is not industry standard nor is it required under the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, require biannual drug testing in accordance with Section 3.14.1, as such policy would result in significant additional costs that would need to be passed along to its customers. Further, many State and local governments prohibit random drug testing of a company’s employees in such jurisdiction either entirely or without at least “reasonable suspicion.”

As such, and as this biannual drug testing program will cause significant cost to be passed along to the State via burdened pricing (thus resulting in lower amounts contributed to the State’s good causes), will the Lottery please revise the requirement in Section 3.14.1 to remove the obligation for biannual drug testing, and instead include the requirement that the offerors have in place a drug-free workplace policy as described above? 

This potential offeror believes having a strong drug-free workplace program in place will accomplish the same goal as the State’s requested drug-testing program, but will eliminate the various costs and other legal hurdles that are necessary with a random drug testing program.

A.     The offeror must provide substantiation that it has a drug free workplace policy in place that meets or exceeds the intent of section 3.14.1 in lieu of the biannual random drug test program defined.

	46. 
	37
	3.15.2 Security of Computer Room Operations
	Q.     Section 3.15.2 provides that there must never be fewer than two dedicated Montana project computer operators on site in the computer room(s) at the primary site during draws and at least one computer operator must be on-site at all other times. 

Will the Lottery please revise this requirement to require only one dedicated Montana computer operator and his/her supervisor during draw periods?

A.     Yes, one dedicated operator plus supervisor in the operations room during draw periods is an acceptable solution.

	47. 
	39
	3.17 Staffing Requirements
	Q.     Will the Lottery please confirm whether it is requiring that the website and mobile application developer, operations manager, and network/systems engineer be located in Helena, MT? 

If yes, will the Lottery please reconsider this requirement and allow the vendor the option to utilize engineers that are physically outside of MT? 

This would allow for greater resource flexibility and potentially increased speed to market.

A.     These positions should be located where they can access the equipment and/or resources needed to best fulfill their duties. The mobile applications developer should be located where they can effectively develop software. The Operations Manager should be located where they can effectively manage the operations staff. The Network/ Systems Engineer should be located where they have access to the network/systems hardware.

	48. 
	39
	3.17
	Q.     Staffing Requirements.  Please define what is meant by the term “marketing support position” and list specifically what are the services required from the vendor?
A.
It is expected that Marketing Support Position would be a management position within the organization, and include, but are not limited to, performing the following duties:

· Responsible for supporting all marketing and sales efforts for the Lottery contract, including developing and maintaining sales analysis, coordinating market research efforts, and contributing to media planning efforts;
· Responsible for managing new online game products created by the Lottery, including complete product lifecycles from specification development, play slip design, to implementation planning, and ongoing performance analysis;
· Design and write all product manuals and other documentation for training purposes per the Lottery;
· Coordinate Lottery website and mobile design, maintenance, content and social media interaction; and
· Manage all special events and support staff for the Lottery; which include, but are not limited to, fairs, retailer events, and training for retailers and State employees.

	49. 
	40
	3.18.2 Website / Mobile / Social Media Support
	Q.     Will the Lottery please provide statistics on the number of downloads of the ePlayslip App that have taken place? 

Will the Lottery confirm that this ePlayslip App can be supported on Android and iOS? 

Will the Lottery please share retailer and/or player feedback on the application?

A.     As of June 20, 2014, there have been 678 ePlayslip App downloads.  // Yes, the ePlayslip App is supported on Android and iOS. // ePlayslip feedback has been minimal but positive from both players and retailers.  No issues have been brought to our attention.

	50. 
	40
	3.18.2 Website / Mobile / Social Media Support
	Q.     Will the Lottery please provide how many members are currently registered in the Players Club and how many of those are active?

A.     As of June 23, 2014, there are 83,308 registered Player’s Club members. On average there are about 4,700 monthly active users since 2012.

	51. 
	40
	3.18.2 Website / Mobile / Social Media Support
	Q.     Will the Lottery please provide the current physical location of the website’s servers? 

Will the Lottery please provide the specifications of these servers and all third party software versions running on them? 

Will the Lottery please advise/confirm the parties that own and operate these servers today?

A.     The website servers are located in the current vendor office, in Boise ID. // No. // The current vendor owns and operates the web servers.

	52. 
	40
	3.18.2 Website / Mobile / Social Media Support
	Q.     Section 3.18.2 requests an offer’s approach to integration to new technology. 

As the scope and complexity of any such third-party integration is an unknown, and as a responsible offeror would need to heavily burden it’s pricing to account for such unknowns, will the Lottery please confirm that such third-party integrations would be subject to mutually agreeable terms and conditions, including, without limitation, potential additional compensation to the contractor?

A.     The Lottery recognizes these services will increase the transaction rate however section 3.18.2 will remain as defined.

	53. 
	40
	3.18.2 Website / Mobile / Social Media Support
	Q.     Will the Lottery please confirm whether it owns the Lottery website and mobile app source code?

If not, will the Lottery please indicate the third party that owns this?
A.    The current vendor owns the intellectual rights to the mobile app source code.

	54. 
	40
	3.18.2 Website / Mobile / Social Media Support
	Q.     Will the Lottery please provide a list of all third-party products, programming languages, and operating systems that you use for your website and mobile app?
A.     This information is proprietary to the current vendor.

	55. 
	40
	3.18.2
	Q.     Q1: Does the Lottery anticipate that the winning contractor will undertake a complete upgrade of the Lottery’s current www.montanalottery.com web site?
Q2: Will the contractor also have responsibility for all updates and content posting after the redesigned site is launched?
A.     Q1 - Yes. 


Q2 - Software updates, yes. Content posting is handled mutually.

	56. 
	40
	3.18.3
	Q.     This requirement seems to be a duplication of the requirement under 3.10.1 Systems Promotions.
Will the Lottery please clarify any difference or eliminate one of the requirements so that the response is not redundant?
A.     Section 3.18 is contained in the marketing section and is intended to bring to offerors’ attention the Lottery’s expectation of providing or sharing promotional ideas, suggestions, analysis, etc.

	57. 
	40
	3.18.3 Promotional Support
	Q.     Section 3.18.3 provides that the contractor will be expected to support modification/improvising of the Lottery’s promotional offerings. 

As the scope and complexity of such modifications/improvising is an unknown, and as a responsible offeror would need to heavily burden its pricing to account for such unknowns, will the Lottery please confirm that such modifications/improvising would be subject to mutually agreeable terms and conditions, including, without limitation, potential additional compensation to the contractor?

A.     The Lottery recognizes these services may increase the transaction rate, however, section 3.18.3 will remain as defined. The Lottery believes that modifications and improvements to any component of the promotional system will benefit not only the Lottery and the State of Montana but also the vendor, by increasing sales and awareness of the Lottery. 

	58. 
	40
	3.18.4
	Q.     Would the Lottery please confirm that it requires, in the base price:
· 1 Full-time, year-round Special Event Coordinator

· Up to 4 part-time seasonal ambassadors from May 1 to September 1  

· Use of a vehicle w/5000 lb towing capacity year-round

· If there are additional staffing or other requirements, please specify.

A.     Yes, confirmed. // There are no additional staffing or other requirements separate from what is already defined.

	59. 
	40
	3.18.4.1
	Q.     The Lottery requests the vendor to provide event ambassadors, field technicians and event staff to conduct event support and promotional activities. The Lottery requests the vendor to provide at least four ambassadors full-time, temporary positions from May 1st – September 1s t who will prepare the events trailer and interact with the players and winners. The Lottery also requests the Contractor must provide event staffing that will support the Lottery in conducting promotional activities and work at any promotional booth to support the selling of Lottery products.
Q1: To ensure proper staffing levels, will the Lottery provide details regarding how many events the vendor will be required to support annually and how many days/hours each of these events last? 

Q2: Will any of these events overlap each other?  Please provide these details broken down by staffing group:

· Event Ambassador Staff 

· Event Technician

· Event Staffing

· Unmanned Events

Please provide a list of past events, locations and duration of support time for the last two fiscal years.
A.     We are not going to provide our prior event activities as we are incorporating this requirement in our RFP in order to allow the Lottery to further expand its events and promotional opportunities, as our needs have grown with the expansion of our retailer network.  However, our staffing will not increase in the next five years and our hope is that extending our programs with our vendor assistance will allow us the continued growth and success we’ve experienced over the past five years.

	60. 
	41
	3.18.5
	Q.     With regard to the requested geo-demographic analytics: Does the Lottery require that the Vendor provide the software to conduct geo-demographic analytics to the Lottery for Lottery staff to utilize?  Or does the Lottery require the Vendor to conduct the geo-demographic analytics on behalf of the Lottery?
If the Lottery requires the Vendor to conduct geo-demographic analytics on behalf of the Lottery, for pricing purposes, how frequently will the analysis be conducted?  For example, once every three years?
A.     The Lottery is asking offeror to provide its best recommendation.

	61. 
	41
	3.18.5
	Q.     How many members in Player’s Club?
A.     Please see response to question #50.

	62. 
	41
	3.18.5
	Q.     What is the year to year growth?
A.     We have added an average of 1,257 members per month since 2012 or around 15,000 per year.

	63. 
	41
	3.18.5 Market Research
	Q.     Will the Lottery please confirm that all costs associated with the market research functions listed in Section 3.18.5 will be borne by the contractor? 

Will the Lottery please confirm that its current vendor has provided similar marketing research as is required in Section 3.18.5? 

If so, will the Lottery please make this market research available to all offerors? 

A.     No research has been conducted on the Lottery’s behalf by our current vendor.

	64. 
	41
	3.18.5
	Q.     Market Research.  Although we applaud the Lottery’s plan to include a significant research component in the base bid; we are concerned about the resulting costs to the Lottery.  For example, if you add the entire “not to exceed” costs of the specific requirements in sub-sections a – e, the total is $270,000 for the first year of the contract ($685,000 for the first 5 years).  If you add the expected costs of sub-sections f and g for the first year, the total annual costs to the Lottery become approximately .5% - .6% of last calendar year’s sales.  All vendors must include these costs in the financial models that determine their base price.  To alleviate this financial burden on the Lottery, we suggest that Section 3.18.5 be moved from the base bid to Section 3.19 Optional Services.  Situations and specific needs change over time and the Lottery may want to change their research plans during the contract.  Changing research to an option will provide you with the ability to select the specific research that you want, when you want it; while also eliminating the financial burden from what becomes a fixed rate for the entire contract period.
A.     The Lottery recognizes this will increase our transaction rate; however, the Lottery is asking the offeror to provide its best recommendation/solution.

	65. 
	41

44
	3.19 Optional Services

5.2 Option Pricing
	Q.     With respect to those optional services included under Section 3.19 of the RFP, will the Lottery please confirm that an offeror is permitted to cost such optional services as “To Be Determined”, as the cost of such items will be subject to the scope, deployment timing, remaining contract term, etc., and a responsible offeror may not be able to adequately cost such options at this time?

A.     The Lottery confirms that an offeror is permitted to cost optional services as “to Be Determined.”

	66. 
	42
	3.19.d Optional Services
	Q.     Will the Lottery please elaborate on the functionality that it desires for Near Field Proximity Communication? 

A.     Near field communication (NFC) is a technology that allows the transfer of small amounts of data via radio frequency identification (RFID) transponders between various types of devices. The intent of the Lottery is to provide promotional, informational and marketing messages directly to Players. Proximity marketing applications can allow our retailers to convey messages to any smartphone within range of a Lottery product, allowing us to precisely target messages to players in retail locations. The functionality is to help Players find the best nearby offers and sales, and receive location based offer alerts. This is not limited to solely Lottery products, but may also be used to alert Players to sales or other promotions at retailer locations. The Lottery intends to direct the promotional and informational messaging.

	67. 
	42
	3.19.e Optional Services
	Q.     Will the Lottery please provide additional details regarding its pull-tab tickets?

Are they barcoded for validations? 

Who is the Lottery’s print vendor and does the print vendor provide game files for your central system? 

Is the Lottery’s current process for inventory and distribution the same as scratch tickets? 

If not, how are the two different? 

A.     The Lottery does not currently offer a pull tab product.

	68. 
	43
	4.2.4 Offeror Financial Stability
	Q.     As the financial statements required under Section 4.2.4 are hundreds of pages for each fiscal year, will the Lottery please accept the financial statements on CDs or other electronic format (e.g., flash drive)?

A.     Yes.

	69. 
	49
	Appendix A: Alteration of Solicitation Document
	Q.     With respect to the order of precedence as between the State’s solicitation document and a vendor’s response, which provides that the State’s original solicitation document would prevail, will the State please confirm that the original solicitation document would be subject to those modifications or clarifications set forth in the questions and answers under Section 1.4.2 and 1.4.3 of the RFP?

A.     Yes, any addenda issued (including this one) will modify and/or clarify the original solicitation.  The State’s solicitation, as modified, will prevail over the offeror’s response.

	70. 
	50
	Appendix B: Transition Agreement

Section 2 Services and/or Supplies
	Q.     Section 2 of Appendix B references an “attached Statement of Work (SOW), RFP14-2885P”; however, no such SOW is attached.

Will the Lottery please confirm that the “Statement of Work (SOW), RFP14-2885P” referenced, when attached to the Transition Agreement, will be subject to mutual agreement between the Contractor and the State on the terms and conditions contained therein?

A.     Confirmed. 

	71. 
	50
	Appendix B

3
	Q.     Would the Lottery consider establishing a minimum period of time (30 days) during which the Contractor would have the opportunity to take corrective action after having received written notice from the Lottery of any failure to comply with the warranties set forth in this Section 3?
A.     The Lottery will revise the first paragraph of Section 3 to read: 
“The Contractor warrants that it performs all services using reasonable care and skill and according to its current description (including any completion criteria) contained in this Agreement. State agrees to provide timely written notice of any failure to comply with this warranty so that giving the Contractor 15 calendar days to take corrective action.  

	72. 
	50-51

65
	Appendix B: Transition Agreement

5.1 Montana Resident Preference

Appendix C:

Operations Contract

7.1 Montana Resident Preference
	Q.     Appendix B, Section 5.1, and Appendix C, Section 7.1, both state that the Contractor must ensure that “at least 50% of the workers performing labor on the project are bona fide Montana residents.” It should be noted that this 50% requirement under Section 18-2-409 of the MCA applies only to “construction contracts” and the term "construction services" is defined by the MCA as “work performed by an individual in building construction, heavy construction, highway construction, and remodeling work” and the term does not include: “(i) engineering, superintendence, management, office, or clerical work on a public works contract; or (ii) consulting contracts, contracts with commercial suppliers for goods and supplies, or contracts with professionals licensed under state law.” However, this potential offeror acknowledges that Section 18-2-403(1) of the MCA provides that the RFP should contain a provision that contractors give preference to the employment of bona fide Montana residents in the performance of the work.”

Thus, this potential offeror believes the State’s requirement that “50% of the workers performing labor on this project are bona fide Montana residents”, under Section 5.1 of Appendix B and Section 7.1 of Appendix C, is not applicable, as both the Transition Agreement and the Operations Contract are not “construction contracts” under the MCA.

As such, this potential offeror respectfully requests that the provisions in both Section 5.1 of Appendix B and Section 7.1 of Appendix C that provide “Unless superseded by federal law, Contractor shall ensure that at least 50% of the workers performing labor on this project are bona fide Montana residents” be deleted from each such respective agreement as such requirements are inconsistent with Montana Law?

A.     The Lottery agrees to delete this sentence from both contracts.  


	73. 
	51
	Appendix B

6.1
	Q.     Would the Lottery agree that the Lottery’s access to any records necessary to determine contract compliance will be subject to or conditioned upon (i) reasonable advance written notice from the Lottery to the Contractor; and (ii) the Contractor’s standard security protocols for access to the Contractor’s facility (i.e., visitor’s badges, escort within the building, etc.)?
A.     The Lottery agrees to the defined conditions.

	74. 
	52
	Appendix B

8
	Q.     Would the Lottery confirm that the Contractor shall not be obligated to protect, defend and save the State, its elected and appointed officials, agents and employees harmless from and against any claims, demands, causes of action of any kind or character, including the cost of defense thereof to the extent to which such claims, demands, causes of action of any kind or character and costs of defense thereof are incurred, suffered or required as a result of the State’s, its elected and appointed officials’, agents’ or employees’ own acts or omissions, or the acts or omissions of a subcontractor of the Montana Lottery, or the acts or omissions of any person directly or indirectly employed by the State?
A.     No.

	75. 
	52
	Appendix B

Transition Agreement 9. Insurance

9.1 General Requirements
	Q.     CR: Please submit a question

The last sentence in Section 9.1 states that “This insurance shall cover such claims as may be caused by any negligent act or omission.” This is a very broad statement and; will the lottery please add to the end of this sentence “for which the Contractor is legally liable:”?

A.     No.

	76. 
	52
	Appendix B:

Transition

9.2 Primary Insurance
	Q.     Many insurance policies are written on a per occurrence basis and not a per project or location limit. 

Will the Lottery please delete the words “and shall apply separately to each project or location”?

A.     The Lottery agrees to delete the words “and shall apply separately to each project or location.”

	77. 
	52
	Appendix B:

Transition Agreement

9.5 Deductibles and Self Insured Retentions
	Q.     It is common in the insurance industry for the individual Insured to choose their deductibles based on their Risk Management philosophy. It is the Insured that would request or decide what levels of deductibles fit their appetite for risk. The Insured as owner of the policy has the right to choose these deductibles. It could adversely affect pricing if deductibles are changed. Therefore, will the Lottery please delete this requirement from Section 9.5?

A.    
No. The State is responsible for managing risks associated with its contracts. Therefore, the State must be able to alleviate risks associated with deductibles or self-insured retentions it deems to be too high.  

	78. 
	53-54
	Appendix B:

Transition Agreement

15.1 Mutual Use

15.5 Ownership of Contractor Pre-Existing Material
	Q.     Section 15.5 provides that if “Contractor fails to disclose to the State such Contractor Pre-Existing Materials, Contractor shall grant the State a nonexclusive, worldwide, paid-up license to use any Contractor Pre-Existing Materials embedded in the Work Product to the extent such Contractor Pre-Existing Materials are necessary for the State to receive the intended benefit under this Agreement.” 

However, Section 15.1 provides for the Lottery’s right to use Contractor inventions and copyrightable works but does not specify the timeframe for such grant of rights or that the rights are limited to use in connection with Work Product.

Will the Lottery confirm that to the extent a Contractor invention, copyrightable work or other right is not incorporated in Work Product, the Lottery’s rights to use the Contractor patent, copyrightable work or other right is limited to the Term of the Agreement?

A.     The Lottery confirms this understanding.

	79. 
	54
	Appendix B

15.3
	Q.     To the extent to which Work Product may incorporate intellectual property licensed from third parties to the Contractor, would the Lottery be willing to negotiate with the Contractor the scope and other terms of the grant and assignment of rights in and to, and the ownership of, any and all Work Product materials used or created in connection with the performance of the Contract?
A.     Yes.

	80. 
	54
	Appendix B:

Transition Agreement

15.5 Ownership of Contractor Pre-Existing Materials
	Q.     Section 15.5 sets forth the definition of Contractor Pre-Existing Materials and specifically excludes Contractor Pre-Existing Materials from the definition of Work Product. As set forth in Section 15.5, the definition of Contractor Pre-Existing Materials does not specifically include deliverables that Contractor may develop for its general corporate offering after the Contract’s effective date. 

Will the Lottery confirm that Contractor also retains ownership rights in any deliverable or material provided under the Contract that may be created exclusively by Contractor after the Effective Date except for those deliverables or materials that first originated under the Contract, are created exclusively for the Lottery pursuant to the Contract, are unique to the Lottery and were paid for by the Lottery?

Will the Lottery clarify that Work Product only includes those products and deliverables provided by Contractor under the Agreement that are created exclusively for the Lottery pursuant to the Contract, are unique to the Lottery and were paid for by the Lottery?

A.     Yes on both counts.

	81. 
	54
	Appendix B

16.1
	Q.     Would the Lottery confirm that the Contractor’s obligation to indemnify the State against third party claims of infringement of such third party’s intellectual property rights shall be limited to those instances in which the Lottery’s use of products furnished to it by the Contractor is in compliance with the terms of this Agreement or a related license agreement?
A.     Yes.

	82. 
	55
	Appendix B: Transition Agreement

18.1 Termination for Cause
	Q.     Will the Lottery please revise Section 18.1 of Appendix B to provide a similar “right to cure” to the Contractor, as is provided to the State under Section 18.2 (i.e., notice of failure to Contractor and a reasonable period to cure such failure before termination is effective)?

A right to cure period is standard in the industry for defaults under a contract, and further, having a reciprocal right to cure is fair and equitable seeing that the State is provided such a right under Section 18.2.

A.     Section 18.1 is being replaced by the following: 
18.1   Termination for Cause with Notice to Cure Requirement.  The State may terminate this contract in whole or in part for Contractor’s failure to materially perform any of the services, duties, terms, or conditions contained in this contract after giving Contractor written notice of the stated failure.  The written notice must demand performance of the stated failure within a specified period of time of not less than 15 calendar days.  If the demanded performance is not completed within the specified period, the termination is effective at the end of the specified period.  

	83. 
	55
	Appendix B: Transition Agreement

18.3 Noncompliance with Department
	Q.     Section 18.3 of Appendix B provides that upon termination for “non-compliance” with the Department’s IT policies or standards then in effect, the Contractor will be paid for “products and services delivered to date” (emphasis added). 

As the Contractor will also have significant costs incurred for products and services that are in development but have not yet been delivered, will the State please revise Section 18.3 to allow the Contractor to recapture these costs and expenses to the extent the Contractor provides verifiable evidence of such expenses, subject to the mutual good faith agreement of the State and the Contractor.

A.     No

	84. 
	55
	Appendix B: Transition Agreement

19.1 Event of Breach by Contractor
	Q.     Section 19.1 of Appendix B sets forth the acts that constitute material breach of the Transition Agreement (which would entitle the State to terminate in accordance with Section 18.1). To avoid the potential issue of the State being granted the right to terminate the Transition Agreement for immaterial issues (e.g., a report being delivered a few hours late), will the State please revise Section 19.1 to read as follows (revised/new language in bold):

19.1 Event of Breach by Contractor. 

Any one or more of the following Contractor acts or omissions constitute an event of material breach under this Agreement:

●
Products or services furnished fail to materially conform to any requirement; 

●
Failure to promptly submit any report required by this Agreement, after notice and/or request therefor, which results in significant damages to the State; 

●
Failure to perform any of the other material terms and conditions of this Agreement, including but not limited to beginning work under this Agreement without prior State approval and breaching Section 24.1 obligations; or

· Voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy or receivership which has not been dismissed or stayed within 30 days after issuance.

It should be noted that the Contractor’s right to terminate the Transition Agreement for the State’s breach, set forth in Section 19.2, is upon the State’s failure to perform a “material” term or condition, and this “materiality” threshold should be reciprocal, as it is fair and equitable in these circumstances.

A.     Bullets 1 through 3 – the Lottery will not revise Section 19.1 as defined.

Bullet 4 – the Lottery agrees to the defined revision.  

	85. 
	55
	Appendix B

19.1
	Q.     Would the Lottery consider establishing a minimum period of time (30 days) during which the Contractor would have the opportunity to cure an event of material breach after having received written notice from the Lottery of such material breach?
A.     Please see the response to question #82. With the revisions made to Section 18.1, it is not necessary to revise this section.  

	86. 
	60
	Appendix C

4
	Q.     Would the Lottery consider establishing a minimum period of time (30 days) during which the Contractor would have the opportunity to take corrective action after having received written notice from the Lottery of any failure to comply with the warranties set forth in this Section 4?
A.     The Lottery will revise the first paragraph of Section  4 to read:
 “The Contractor warrants that it performs all services using reasonable care and skill and according to its current description (including any completion criteria) contained in this Agreement. State agrees to provide timely written notice of any failure to comply with this warranty so that giving the Contractor 15 calendar days to take corrective action unless the nature of the failure is subject to Liquidated Damages as detailed in Section 6 of this Contract.”

	87. 
	61
	Appendix C: Operations Contract

5.2 Withholding of Payment
	Q.     In connection with the State’s right to withhold payments under Section 5.2 of Appendix C, will the Lottery kindly describe the process with respect to disputed payments and, in particular, the process in the event the Contractor and the State disagree on any disputed amount?

Further, will the Lottery please confirm that all amounts not subject to dispute will still be paid as and when due?

A.     The State and Contractor would attempt to negotiate a resolution of the dispute.  If unsuccessful, a party could exercise its rights under the contract or under the law.
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5.3 Payment Terms
	Q.     The Contractor respectfully requests that the first sentence of Section 5.3 of Appendix C be deleted and replaced as follows: 

“Unless otherwise provided in this Contract and pursuant to Section 17-8-242 of the MCA, the Lottery shall pay Contractor invoices within thirty days of receipt. Amounts due and unpaid after such period shall accrue interest at the rate of 0.05% each day on amounts due.” 

The foregoing language is consistent with 17-8-242, MCA, which provides as follows: 

17-8-242. Interest assessed on amounts due. 

(1) Except as provided in 17-8-244, a state agency shall pay simple interest at the rate of 0.05% each day on amounts due for supplies and services received if the agency fails to make timely payment. 

(2) For purposes of this section, payment is timely if a warrant is mailed or is otherwise made available to the payee when due and for the amount specified in the applicable contract or agreement. If no date is specified in the applicable contract or agreement, payment is timely if paid within 30 days after receipt of a properly completed invoice, addressed to the payer agency, or receipt of the supplies or services by the agency, whichever is later.

A.     No.
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6 Liquidated Damages (LD)
	Q.     The first sentence of the second paragraph of Section 6 of Appendix C provides that the “[a]ssessment of liquidated damages must be in addition to, and no in lieu of, such other remedies as may be available to the Lottery.”

Under law, liquidated damages are meant as a reasonable assessment of the damages the Lottery would incur upon the Contractor’s breach.

In order to avoid the Lottery’s receiving an unfair windfall if it is entitled to receive other damages in addition to liquidated damages, would the Lottery please delete the language noted above in the first sentence of the second paragraph of Section 6 of Appendix C, as it is inconsistent with the law on liquidated damages?

A.     No.
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6 Liquidated Damages (LD)
	Q.     The second sentence of the second paragraph of Section 6 of Appendix C provides that the Lottery is “entitled to recover liquidated damages under each section applicable to any given incident.” 

As written, this provision allows the Lottery to recoup multiple damages for the same incident, thereby resulting in the Lottery receiving liquidated damages that far exceed the actual damages incurred by the Lottery, and such a provision is inconsistent with law regarding liquidated damages. Liquidated damages that would be payable for a particular event would not be a fair and reasonable approximation of damages suffered by the Lottery where such damages may be applied in the aggregate for a single incident.

As such, will the Lottery please revise the second sentence of the second paragraph of Section 6 to read as follows:

“Except and to the extent expressly provided herein, to the extent an event occurs for which liquidated damages are assessable under more than one subsection of this Section 6, the Lottery and the Contractor shall mutually agree upon the more appropriate subsection.”

A.     The Lottery does not agree that we are assessing multiple or unconscionable liquidated damages for the same event.  Further, the Lottery will assess liquidated damage based on the root cause of the default. 

	91. 
	61
	Appendix C: Operations Contract

6 Liquidated Damages
	Q.     The first sentence of the third paragraph of Section 6 of Appendix C provides that the Lottery should not be prohibited “from seeking actual damages for breaches not covered by liquidated damages or from seeking actual damages that exceed the amounts paid by liquidated damages (emphasis added).”

As written, this provision allows the Lottery to receive additional “actual” damages when it can be proven that the actual damages were in excess of the liquidated damages chargeable for such incident. 

However, if the actual damages can be proven, and to be consistent with the law regarding liquidated damages, this provision allowing the use of actual damages in lieu of liquidated damages must be reciprocal. As such, will the State please amend the RFP to provide the following:

(i) That the Contractor may furnish, and the Lottery will consider, factual evidence where available to establish that the Lottery’s actual damages were less than the liquidated damages; and

(ii) That the Lottery will not assess more than its actual damages for any incident where the evidence establishes to the Lottery’s reasonable satisfaction that its actual damages were less than the liquidated damages for such incident.

A.   The Lottery agrees to add this language to the third paragraph of Section 6 as requested.  
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6.1 Notification of Liquidated Damages

6.5 Payment of Liquidated Damages
	Q.     Section 6.1 of Appendix C provides for the assessment of liquidated damages by the Lottery. However, Section 6 of Appendix C does not include a dispute provision either in this Section 6.1 or elsewhere. Further, Section 6.5 provides that “all assessed” liquidated damages will be deducted from moneys owed to the Contractor.

As such, will the Lottery please: (i) revise Section 6.1 of Appendix C to permit the Contractor to dispute in good faith any assessment of liquidated damages within five (5) business days of the assessment of such liquidated damages, subject to a good faith dispute resolution procedure, and (ii) revise Section 6.5 of Appendix C to provide that “all assessed liquidated damages not disputed in good faith by the Contractor” will be deducted from any moneys owed to the Contractor?

A.     No.
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6.1 Notification of Liquidated Damages
	Q.     Section 6.1 of Appendix C provides “failure to notify the Lottery of such discoveries within two calendar days shall be grounds for triple LDs.” As the Lottery is aware, and pursuant to the laws on liquidated damages, liquidated damages cannot be punitive.

As this proposed tripling of the liquidated damages is a punitive measure and is wholly inconsistent with law on liquidated damages, we respectfully request that the Lottery delete this “triple LDs” language from Section 6.1 in its entirety?

A.     The Lottery agrees to revise the second paragraph of Section 6.1 as follows:

“The Contractor shall notify the Lottery of any circumstances it discovers which may trigger LDs.  Failure to notify the Lottery of such discoveries within two calendar days shall be grounds for triple LDs.”
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6.4 Waiver of Liquidated Damages
	Q.     Section 6.4 of Appendix C provides that the Lottery’s failure to demand payment for liquidated damages within any period of time is not a waiver. However, setting a reasonable period in which the Lottery must assess liquidated damages is both fair and standard in the industry.

As such, will the Lottery please revise the last sentence of Section 6.4 to provide that if liquidated damages are not assessed by the Lottery within three (3) months after the Lottery’s notice of the incident giving rise to such liquidated damages, the Lottery waives its rights to assess liquidated damages for such incident?

A.     The Lottery agrees to revise Section 6.4 as follows:  
6.4 Waiver of Liquidated Damages.   It is expressly agreed that the waiver of any liquidated damages due the Lottery shall constitute a waiver only as to such liquidated damages and not a waiver of any future liquidated damages.  Failure to demand payment of liquidated damages within any period of time shall not constitute a waiver of such claim by the Lottery.  If liquidated damages are not assessed by the Lottery within three months after the Lottery’s notice of the incident giving rise to such liquidated damages, the Lottery waives its rights to assess liquidated damages for such incident.
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6.7
	Q.     Liquidated damages provisions are another method of ensuring that the Lottery’s revenue is not jeopardized. Damages should reflect an estimation of the anticipated actual loss to the state and should not unduly penalize the vendor. We believe that imposing disproportionate potential liquidated damages that don’t reflect net revenue loss to the state is detrimental to the relationship between Lottery and vendor and will lead to staffing levels and additional costs in the base pricing offer that will not generate desired Lottery return on investment.
Q1:
Will the Lottery consider a penalty structure which represents a model that reflects the actual loss of net revenue to the state?  

Q2:
Will the Lottery please confirm that the amount of liquidated damages shall be reasonably and rationally related to damage actually incurred by the Lottery?  Furthermore, will the Lottery please confirm that Liquidated Damages shall not be assessed in the event the Lottery is not damaged?

Q3:
Will the Lottery please confirm that Liquidated Damages will not be assessed by the Lottery under multiple provisions relating to a single incident?  

Q4:
Will the Lottery please confirm that the Contractor shall not be liable for Liquidated Damages to the extent the incident was caused by the Lottery, its retailers, third parties, communications failures or force majeure?

Q5:
Would the Lottery be willing to negotiate the period of time following an incident giving rise to the Lottery’s right to Liquidated Damages, after the expiration of which period the Lottery would be deemed to have waived its right to recovery of Liquidated Damages?
A.     Q1 – No.  The Lottery understands that liquidated damages must be conscionable and part of a fair bargaining process. Considering the sophisticated knowledge possessed by offerors (this is not a contract of adhesion) and that the measure of damages is not unreasonably favorable to the Lottery—that is, the damages are within the reasonable expectations of offerors—the Lottery believes its liquidated damages clauses are reasonable.

Q2 – See answer above. // Montana law does not apply the actual damage test. Montana law views liquidated damages clauses from the prism of unconscionability. Damages will not be assessed if unwarranted.

Q3 – Please see response to question #90.

Q4 – The Lottery agrees that the Contractor will not be liable for breaches by the Lottery, its retailers, or force majeure. The Contractor will be liable for incidents associated with sub-contractors/vendors such as ICS vendor, satellite contractor, terminal and/or satellite dish installer sub-contractors, as well as LDs associated with issues found with software deployments even if the Lottery has deemed the software ‘sound to deploy’, but may have missed unaccounted-for changes

Q5 – Please see response to question #94. 
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6.7
	Q.     Does the Lottery intend the RFP to have two consecutive sections listed as section 6.7?
A.     Section 6.7, Liquidated Damages Related to On-going Operations, is numbered incorrectly, the correct number is 6.8. The reference in the first paragraph of this Section is also changed to 6.8.
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6.7.a Failure to Install Terminals
	Q.     Speaks to LD for failure to install terminals in a schedule determined by the lottery, but has no schedule. 

What’s the current requirement and is it expected to stay the same?

A.     The Lottery and the selected offeror will mutually agree upon the schedule for installing terminals and this schedule will be included in the Statement of Work attached to the Contract.
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6.7.c Failure to Furnish Supplies
	Q.     Section 6.7(c) of Appendix C (Liquidated Damages Related to System Conversion) inadvertently references “this Section 5.6 (Liquidated Damages Related to System Conversion). 

Will the Lottery please revise this Section 6.7(c) to correctly reference “this Section 6.7”?

A.     Please see response to question #96.
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6.7 Liquidated Damages Relating to On-going Operations

(Second Reference)
	Q.     The Section on “Liquidated Damages Related to On-going Operations” in Appendix C inadvertently repeats “Section 6.7” (which was the previous Section on “Liquidated Damages Related to System Conversion).

Will the Lottery please revise this Section on “Liquidated Damages Related to On-going Operations” to correctly reference “Section 6.8” throughout?

A.     Please see response to question #96.
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6.7c
	Q.     Is the reference to “this Section 5.6” as it appears in Section 6.7c (the first one) an error?
A.     Please see response to question #96.
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6.7.c&d
	Q.     c.  Failure to Furnish Supplies - If a retailer becomes unable to sell tickets because of the Contractor's failure to provide adequate supplies, the Contractor must pay the Lottery $300 per day, for each retailer affected by such failure of the Contractor.  There is also a $1,000 liquidated damage for each time the Contractor orders ticket stock or playslips without allowing the Lottery to review these printed supplies seven (7) days before ordering.
d.  Failure to Repair Terminals – Within 24 hours of trouble reported, if the Contractor fails to repair or replace a terminal that cannot sell any or all products available from it, the Contractor must pay the Lottery $500 per day, for each such failure.  Within 48 hours of trouble reported, if the Contractor fails to repair or replace a degraded terminal (with the capacity to still sell all products available from it), the Contractor must pay the Lottery $300 per day, for each by such failure.  

Will the Lottery consider revising the Liquidated Damages section to calculate Liquidated Damages for Terminal based on an average of the prior 13-weeks of sales and a similar jackpot amount and then, calculating the Liquidated Damages based on the percent of return to state (30%), rather than as a flat rate of up to $300 dollars per day?  This would guarantee an equitable loss of damages to the state.

If not, based on sales (as mentioned above) will the Lottery consider adding “or fraction thereof.”?  Based on this language it “might” make sense for the vendor to drive by the highest selling retailer in the state to repair/PM the retailer across the street and come back to the highest retailer to perform service based on the arrival time within the day.
A.     The Lottery considers all retailers to be of equal value. Therefore, we will not consider modifying this language.
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6.7.c Failure to Commence Operations - Terminals

6.[8].a Failure to Install Terminals
	Q.     Both: (i) Section 6.7(c) of Appendix C (Liquidated Damages Related to System Conversion) and (ii) Section 6.[8](a) (Liquidated Damages Related to On-Going Operations), use a “per terminal per system” liquidated damage in the amount of “$500 per terminal per calendar day” (Section 6.7(c)) or “$500 per terminal per operation day” (Section 6.[8](a)). 

The Lottery has indicated that it anticipates gross sales in the amount of $60,000,000, using a base of 1,000 retailers, which, would result in an average sales of $165/terminal/day, which is far below the proposed liquidated damages assessment of $500/terminal/day. 

As such, and to ensure that these liquidated damages assessments are not deemed punitive (and prohibited in accordance with law), we respectfully request that the Lottery revise this per terminal per day liquidated damages assessment to $165 per terminal per day.

Further, will the Lottery please confirm that any liquidated damages assessed under either Section 6.7(c) and Section 6.[8](a), in connection with failure to install terminals, would only apply to those terminals that are not installed (e.g., if 800 of the 1,000 terminals have been properly installed, but there are 200 uninstalled terminals, the liquidated damages would apply only to those 200 uninstalled terminals)?

Otherwise, to assess liquidated damages on installed terminals that can process sales would be deemed punitive and inconsistent with the law on liquidated damages.

A.     The Lottery considers average sales per terminal/per day along with costs associated with staff time dealing with event, as well as the value of ‘loss of good will’ with retailers and players when determining proposed liquidated damages; these damages are reasonable, considering the sophisticated knowledge possessed by offerors (this is not a contract of adhesion) and the measure of damages is not unreasonably favorable to the Lottery—that is, the damages are within the reasonable expectations of offerors. Therefore, we will not consider modifying this language. // The Lottery confirms that any liquidated damages assessed under either section 6.7(c) and section 6.8(a), in connection with failure to install terminals, would only apply to those terminals that are not installed. 

	103. 
	62
	Appendix C:

Operations Contract

6.[8] Liquidated Damages Related to On-going Operations
	Q.     Section 6.[8] (to be corrected per the above question) of Appendix C provides a cap on liquidated damages at $4,000,000 per year for those damages to be incurred relating to “on-going operations”. 

Will the Lottery please clarify what this $4,000,000 cap on liquidated damages relates to? 

Alternatively, as the pricing structure under Section 5.1 of the RFP bases the contractor’s compensation on percent of each sales dollar, and uses the annual sales estimate of $60 million, will the Lottery consider revising this cap on liquidated damages that the Contractor’s projected annual compensation using the formula: (i) % of each sales dollar proposed under Section 5.1 of the RFP, multiplied by: (ii) $60 million. Thus, for example, if an offeror proposes, in response to Section 5.1, compensation in the amount of 5% of each sales dollar, that the per year cap on liquidated damages would be $3 million (5% x $60 million)?

A.     The $4,000,000 yearly cap on liquidated damages relates to the Lottery’s estimation of what might constitute a worst case scenario for LDs (per terminal/per day scenario plus period of time LD may be accessed).  This is not necessarily related to what the contractor stands to lose.  The Lottery does not anticipate reaching the cap.
 The Lottery does not agree to tailor the LD cap by the potential sales. The purpose of LDs is to mitigate the potential losses the Lottery may be exposed to.
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6.[8].b Central Gaming System Failure or Degraded Performance
	Q.     Section 6.[8](b) provides a $200/minute liquidated damage (after 5 minute grace period) for a “down” central gaming system.

As noted above, based upon the Lottery’s projected sales forecast, the average per minute sales (based upon 24/7/365 operation) would be roughly $115/minute ($60,000,000/year/365days/24hours/60minutes). Further, this amount would be the “gross” revenue to the State, and does not reflect that actual lost “net revenue” payable to good causes. 

Because a lottery central system tracks all sales, it is possible to use average sales data from comparable days of the week and times of day, and comparable jackpot amounts, in order to estimate the amount of any lost sales resulting from a “down” system.

Will the Lottery please consider the use of such a “comparable sales” liquidated damages provision (with a cap on total damages per day), such as the following?

“Should the central system remain down for more than said five (5) minute grace period, liquidated damages may be assessed, by multiplying: 

(a) the average sales per minute for the period of down time over the preceding ten (10) week period (or, if the central system has been in operation for less than ten (10) weeks, then the calculation shall be postponed and liquidated damages shall be calculated at such time as ten (10) weeks of wagers have occurred), by: 

(b) [a % to reflect the net revenue to the Lottery, for example 35%], and then multiplying the amount resulting from said calculations by the number of minutes that the central system is down beyond the five (5) minute grace period, up to a capped amount of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) per day.”

A.     Please see response to question #102.
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6.[8].b Central Gaming System Failure or Degraded Performance
	Q.     Will the Lottery please confirm that the liquidated damage for “degraded performance” set forth in Section 6.[8](b) of Appendix C (being $500/terminal/day), would only be applicable to those terminals that suffer “degraded performance” in excess of the 1 hour aggregate grace period? 

Further, as requested above, will the Lottery please consider the use of such a “comparable sales” liquidated damages provision (with a cap on total damages per day), such recommended above.

If not, will the Lottery at the very least revise this $500/terminal/day amount to correctly reflect the average $165/terminal/day projected loss in sales?

A.     Yes, the Lottery confirms that LDs will only be assessed after any grace periods stated.

Please see response to question # 102.

The LD amounts will not be revised. 
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6.[8].c Failure to Furnish Supplies
	Q.     As requested above, in connection with the $300/retailer/day liquidated damage for failure to deliver supplies in Section 6.[8](c) of Appendix C , will the Lottery please consider the use of such a “comparable sales” liquidated damages provision (with a cap on total damages per day), such recommended above.

If not, will the Lottery at the very least revise this $300/retailer/day amount to correctly reflect the average $165/retailer/day projected loss in sales?

A.     Please see responses to questions 102 and 105. 
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6.[8].d Failure to Repair Terminals
	Q.     Section 6.[8](d) provides that “failure to repair or replace terminals that cannot sell any or all products available from it, the contractor must pay $500”. 

Is this for all terminal types? 

Is this for all retailers (rural and urban)?

A.     Yes this applies to all terminal types and all retailers.
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6.[8].f Failure to Install Additional Games or Game Options or Other Software Enhancements
	Q.     Will the Lottery please revise the requirement under Section 6.[8](f) of Appendix C to provide that the liquidated damages result if the Contractor failed to install and operate the new or additional game within 90 days after “the agreement of the parties on the specifications for such game” instead of “of the formal request”?

This would ensure that the parties are in agreement as to what is required to be delivered and thus would start the 90 day obligation from such agreement.

Further, will the Lottery please revise the liquidated damage for this subsection to “$1,000 per calendar day” and/or provide justification as to why “$15,000 per calendar day” is an appropriate liquidated damage for this failure? 

It is this potential offerors experience that $1,000/day is a more appropriate liquidated damage amount for such failure, and $15,000/day appears to be punitive.

A.     Please see response to question 102. 
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6.[8].h Internal Control System Transaction File
	Q.     Will the Lottery please revise the requirement under Section 6.[8](h) of Appendix C to provide that the liquidated damages resulting from the Contractor failing to transfer ICS transaction file is “$100 per minute” after the ten minute grace period and/or provide justification as to why “$1,000 per minute” is an appropriate liquidated damage for this failure? 

Further, will the Lottery please cap this liquidated damage under Section 6.[8](h) at ten thousand dollars ($10,000) per incident?

It is this potential offerors experience that $100/minute is a more appropriate liquidated damage amount for such failure, and $1,000/minute is a punitive assessment given the Lottery’s sales figures.

A.     Agreed.  
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6.[8].i Non-Represented or Phantom Tickets
	Q.     Section 6.[8](i) of Appendix C provides the Contractor with uncapped liability with respect to tickets issued in error. It is standard practice in the industry that a customer’s remedy for such errors is limited to receipt of a replacement ticket, and not the prize cost.

Will the Lottery please confirm that the Contractor’s liability under this Section 6.[8](i) applies only to the extent that the error was the result of the Contractor’s obligations under the Operations Contract, and not resulting from any other third-party?

Additionally, will the Lottery please confirm that prior to settling any claim with a player in connection with any such errors, that the Contractor will have the ability to participate in such discussions or negotiations prior to the payment of any claim for which the Contractor would be liable?

Further, will the Lottery please include a cap on this liquidated damage, e.g., in the amount of $100,000?

Lastly, with respect to the Contractor’s obligation to pay the Lottery’s costs incurred in connection with this error, will the Lottery please confirm that these costs will be limited to those reasonable and verifiable costs specifically identified by the Lottery?

A.     The Lottery believes this clause is reasonable and will not change the language. 
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6.[8].m Failure to Meet Training Requirements

6.[8].n Failure to Meet Required Physical and System Security Requirements

6.[8].o Failure to Background Check
	Q.     Will the Lottery please allow a reasonable grace period and opportunity to cure the failures set forth in Sections 6.[8](m) (Training Requirements), (n) (Physical and System Security Requirements), and (o) (Background Check), before issuing liquidated damages?

A.     Please see response to question #129 noting that Section 22.1 has been replaced.  Given the changes to Section 22.1, these changes to Section 6.8 are not necessary.
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6.[8].p Failure to Adequately Supply Retailers
	Q.     Section 6.[8](p) of Appendix C, in connection with failure to adequately supply retailers for non-emergency supply requests, does not include an associated liquidated damage. This potential offeror suggests a $100 penalty after the grace period?

A.     Agreed.
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6.[8].q Digital Assets
	Q.     Will the Lottery please confirm that the liquidated damages under Section 6.[8](q) related to failures to digital assets only apply to the extent that the Contractor is responsible for providing such digital assets and/or caused such failures?

A.     Confirmed. 
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6.[8].s Contract Expiration Equipment Removal
	Q.     Section 6.[8](s) of Appendix C indicates that liquidated damages will be incurred if the Contractor does not remove all equipment in accordance with Section 3.8 of the RFP. However, Section 3.8 of the RFP does not provide a timeframe for the Contractor to remove this equipment. 

Will the Lottery please confirm that this timeframe will be mutually agreeable by the parties in connection with the transitions services to be provided under the “end of contract conversion cooperation”?

A.     Confirmed.
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8.1
	Q.    Would the Lottery agree that the Lottery’s access to any records necessary to determine contract compliance will be subject to or conditioned upon (i) reasonable advance written notice from the Lottery to the Contractor; and (ii) the Contractor’s standard security protocols for access to the Contractor’s facility (i.e., visitor’s badges, escort within the building, etc.)?
A.     Yes.

	116. 
	66
	Appendix C:

Operations Contract

8.2 Retention Period
	Q.     Section 8.2 of Appendix C requires the Contractor to maintain records for eight years after completion or termination of the contract.

Industry standard storage requirements for records are generally three (3) years after contract termination/completion.

As such, will the Lottery please revise this requirement to provide that Contractor is only required to retain the records under the contract for three (3) years after completion or termination?

A.     Yes.
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10 Hold Harmless/Indemnification
	Q.     Section 10 of Appendix C provides that the contractor indemnification obligation does not apply in the event of “the sole negligence of the State”. A Contractor should not be liable “to the extent” such damages or claims result from the negligence of the State, and not only for the “sole negligence” of the State. 

As such, will the Lottery please revise Section 10 of Appendix C to delete “except the sole negligence of the State” and replace that deleted language with “except to the extent caused by the negligence of the State”, so that Section 10 would read as follows (revised language in bold):

“Contractor agrees to protect, defend, and save the State, its elected and appointed officials, agents, and employees, while acting within the scope of their duties as such, harmless from and against all claims, demands, causes of action of any kind or character, including the cost of defense thereof, arising in favor of Contractor's employees or third parties on account of bodily or personal injuries, death, or damage to property arising out of services performed or omissions of services or in any way resulting from the acts or omissions of Contractor and/or its agents, employees, representatives, assigns, subcontractors, except to the extent caused by the sole negligence of the State, under this agreement.”?

A.     No, the Lottery does not agree to the proposed revision.
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	Q.     Would the Lottery confirm that the Contractor shall not be obligated to protect, defend and save the State, its elected and appointed officials, agents and employees harmless from and against any claims, demands, causes of action of any kind or character, including the cost of defense thereof to the extent to which such claims, demands, causes of action of any kind or character and costs of defense thereof are incurred, suffered or required as a result of the State’s, its elected and appointed officials’, agents’ or employees’ own acts or omissions, or the acts or omissions of a subcontractor of the Montana Lottery, or the acts or omissions of any person directly or indirectly employed by the State?
A.     No.
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11 Limitation of Liability
	Q.     The first sentence of Section 11 of Appendix C provides a limitation on liability to the Contractor at “twice the contract amount”. We respectfully that this limitation of liability be capped at the “contract amount” (i.e., not twice this amount), so that the first sentence of Section 11 would read as follows (revised language in bold):

“Contractor's liability for contract damages is limited to direct damages and further to no more than twice the contract amount.”?

A.     Section 11 is revised as follows:
Contractor's liability for contract damages for each claim made by the State is limited to direct damages and further to no more than twice the contract amount for each claim.  Contractor shall not be liable for special, incidental, consequential, punitive, or indirect damages.  Damages caused by injury to persons or tangible property, or related to intellectual property indemnification, are not subject to a cap on the amount or type of damages. This clause does not apply to Liquidated Damages as covered by Section 6 of this Contract.
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12. Required Insurance

12.1 General Requirements
	Q.     The last sentence in Section 12.1 states that “This insurance shall cover such claims as may be caused by any negligent act or omission.” This is a very broad statement; will the lottery please add to the end of this sentence “for which the Contractor is legally liable:”?

A.     No.  
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12.2 Primary Insurance
	Q.     Many insurance policies are written on a per occurrence basis and not a per project or location limit. 

Will the Lottery please delete the words “and shall apply separately to each project or location”?

A.     The Lottery agrees to delete the words “and shall apply separately to each project or location.” 
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12.5 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions
	Q.     It is common in the insurance industry for the individual Insured to choose their deductibles based on their Risk Management philosophy. It is the Insured that would request or decide what levels of deductibles fit their appetite for risk. The Insured as owner of the policy has the right to choose these deductibles. It could adversely affect pricing if deductibles are changed. Will the Lottery please delete this requirement in Section 12.5?

A.     No. The State is responsible for managing risks associated with its contracts. Therefore, the State must be able to alleviate risks associated with deductibles or self-insured retentions it deems to be too high.
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12.7 Fidelity Bond
	Q.     Crime Insurance provides broader coverage than a Fidelity Bond. Most of the coverages listed in 12.7 would be found in a Crime policy. However, coverage is for your employees and not someone else’s. The way the Crime section is worded goes beyond a typical Crime policy. 

Will the Lottery please limit this section to the employees of the Contractor? 

A.     No. 

	123. 
	68
	Appendix C: Operations Contract

16 Technology Access for Blind or Visually Impaired
	Q.     Will the Lottery please clarify the intent of Section 16 of Appendix C and further clarify what a Contractor would be required to provide under the Operations Contract as “interactive use of equipment and services” under this Section 16?
A.     Montana’s Nonvisual Access Technology Procurement Act, MCA 18-5-604, applies to information technology, which means: all electronic information processing hardware and software, which this contract falls under.

	124. 
	68
	Appendix C

18.1
	Q.     To the extent to which Work Product may incorporate intellectual property licensed from third parties to the Contractor, would the Lottery be willing to negotiate with the Contractor the scope and other terms of the grant and assignment of rights in and to, and the ownership of, any and all Work Product materials used or created in connection with the performance of the Contract?
A.     Yes. 

	125. 
	69
	Appendix C

19.1
	Q.     Would the Lottery confirm that the Contractor’s obligation to indemnify the State against third party claims of infringement of such third party’s intellectual property rights shall be limited to those instances in which the Lottery’s use of products furnished to it by the Contractor is in compliance with the terms of this Agreement or a related license agreement?
A.     Yes. 

	126. 
	69
	Appendix C: Operations Contract

20 Contract Performance Assurance
	Q.     This section states that the performance security is based upon a decision of the Montana Lottery Commission per 23-7-211 (2) (b) MCA. 

Will the Lottery please provide the Performance bond amount under the current contract? 

A.     The current contract performance bond amount is $1,000,000.

	127. 
	69
	Appendix C: Operations Contract

20 Contract Performance Assurance
	Q.     The Performance bond form provided by the RFP does not include annual language or cure the default wording. 

Will the Lottery accept an industry standard bond? 

Will the Lottery add that this bond can be renewed on an annual basis?
A.     Per Montana Administrative Rule 2.5.502 (2), the contract performance bond supplied by the State is the only acceptable form.

	128. 
	70
	Appendix C: Operations Contract

22.1 Termination for Cause
	Q.     Will the Lottery please revise Section 22.1 of Appendix C to provide a similar “right to cure” to the Contractor, as is provided to the State under Section 22.2 (i.e., notice of failure to Contractor and a reasonable period to cure such failure before termination is effective)?

A right to cure period is standard in the industry for defaults under a contract, and further, having a reciprocal right to cure is fair and equitable seeing that the State is provided such a right.

A.      Section 22.1 is being replaced by the following: 

22.1   Termination for Cause with Notice to Cure Requirement.  The State may terminate this contract in whole or in part for Contractor’s failure to materially perform any of the services, duties, terms, or conditions contained in this contract after giving Contractor written notice of the stated failure.  The written notice must demand performance of the stated failure within a specified period of time of not less than 15 calendar days.  If the demanded performance is not completed within the specified period, the termination is effective at the end of the specified period.  

	129. 
	70-71
	Appendix C: Operations Contract

22.4 Noncompliance with Department of Administration
	Q.     Section 22.4 of Appendix C provides that upon termination for “non-compliance” with the Department’s IT policies or standards then in effect, the Contractor will be paid for “products and services delivered to date” (emphasis added).

As the Contractor will also have significant costs incurred for products and services that are in development but have not yet been delivered, will the State please revise Section 22.4 to allow the Contractor to recapture these costs and expenses to the extent the Contractor provides verifiable evidence of such expenses, subject to the mutual good faith agreement of the State and the Contractor.

A.     No. 

	130. 
	71
	Appendix C: Operations Contract

23.1 Event of Breach by Contractor
	Q.     Section 23.1 of Appendix C sets forth the acts that constitute material breach of the Operations Contract (which would entitle the State to terminate in accordance with Section 22.1). To avoid the potential issue of the State being granted the right to terminate the Operations Contract for immaterial issues (e.g., a report being delivered a few hours late), would the State please revise Section 23.1 to read as follows (revised/new language in bold):

23.1 Event of Breach by Contractor. 

Any one or more of the following Contractor acts or omissions constitute an event of material breach under this contract:

●
Products or services furnished fail to materially conform to any requirement; 

●
Failure to promptly submit any report required by this contract, after notice and/or request therefor, which results in significant damages to the State; 

●
Failure to perform any of the other material terms and conditions of this contract, including but not limited to beginning work under this contract without prior State approval and breaching Section 28.1 obligations; or

· Voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy or receivership which has not been dismissed or stayed within 30 days after issuance.

It should be noted that the Contractor’s right to terminate the Operations Contract for the State’s breach, set forth in Section 23.2, is upon the State’s failure to perform a “material” term or condition, and this “materiality” threshold should be reciprocal, as it is fair and equitable in these circumstances.

A.     Bullets 1 through 3 – the Lottery will not revise Section 23.1 as defined.


Bullet 4 – the Lottery agrees to the defined revision. 

	131. 
	71
	Appendix C

23.1
	Q.     Would the Lottery consider establishing a minimum period of time (30 days) during which the Contractor would have the opportunity to cure an event of material breach after having received written notice from the Lottery of such material breach?
A.     Please see the response to question #129. With the revisions made to Section 22.1, it is not necessary to revise this section. 

	132. A
	76
	Appendix D: Montana Prevailing Wage Rates for Nonconstruction Services


	Q.     Based upon the definition provided for “nonconstruction services,” it is not readily apparent to this proposed offeror that the lottery services required under this RFP would be deemed “nonconstruction services”, notwithstanding the fact that this proposed offer believes that the services clearly are not “construction services” under MCA 18-2-401. Will the Lottery please clarify this potential inconsistency set forth in the definition of “nonconstruction services”? 

Further, will the Lottery please advise as to what employees these prevailing wage rates would apply, as again, the information linked to in Appendix D does not clearly provide a grouping for workers that would be providing lottery services?

A.    
This contract is subject to the Montana Prevailing Wage requirement per the definition in 18-2-401 MCA: (11) (a) "Public works contract" means a contract for construction services let by the state, county, municipality, school district, or political subdivision or for nonconstruction services let by the state, county, municipality, or political subdivision in which the total cost of the contract is in excess of $25,000.  These services fall within the definition of nonconstruction services.  The Contractor shall comply with all applicable Prevailing Wage statutes and related Administrative Rules.

	133. .
	77
	Appendix E: Historical Sales
	Q.     The Lottery did not include sales associated with the Fantasy Sports games. 

Will the Lottery please provide those historical figures?

A.     Please refer to the file labeled: ‘MSA FF FR Sales 3yrs’ posted to the website with this addendum for Montana Sports Action – Fantasy Football and Fantasy Racing historical sales information.  

	134. A
	81

82
	Appendix F:

Product Overview

7 Montana Fantasy Sports—Football

8 Montana Fantasy Sports—Racing
	Q.     Will the Lottery please confirm that the Montana Fantasy Sports – Football and Montana Fantasy Sports – Racing games, and the terminals that they are provided on, are not subject to any patents or other intellectual property rights for which a potential vendor would be required to pay a licensing fee (or similar) in order to provide such games?

A.     Current vendor does have patent.

	135. 
	85-87
	Appendix G: Glossary of Terms
	Q.     Will the Lottery please delete the following terms set forth in Appendix G, which do not appear elsewhere in the RFP: 

“Active Game,” “Activated Ticket,” “Cash Option,” “CST,” “Fun Play,” “Game Number,” “The Works,” “Void Ticket,” and “Working Papers”?

A.     No, this glossary contains general Montana Lottery terms.

	136. 
	
	General Question
	Q.     Will the Lottery please provide the current contracts for both its instant and online vendors?

A.     Please refer to the files included in the zipped folder: ‘Contracts’ posted to the website with this addendum containing the current instant and online contracts.  

	137. 
	
	General Question
	Q.     Will the Lottery please provide Liquidated Damages for its current vendors for the past 3 years?

A.     There were no LDs assessed in the past three years.

	138. 
	General
	General
	Q.     Please advise us of any pending legislation that may affect the Lottery?
A.     There is no pending legislation that we are aware of.
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